
 

 

 
YOU MATTER TO US - CORPORATE PARENTING BOARD 

 

Date: Thursday, 13 March 2025 
Time: 4.30 p.m. 

Venue: Mandela Room, Town Hall 

 
AGENDA 

 
1.   Welcome and Fire Evacuation Procedure 

 
  

2.   Apologies for Absence 
 

  

3.   Declarations of Interest 
 

  

4.   Minutes - You Matter to Us - Corporate Parenting Board -  
30 January 2025 
 

 3 - 10 

5.   Care Experienced Youth Update 
 

 11 - 12 

6.   Children in Care Update 
 

 13 - 18 

7.   You Matter to Us - Performance 
 

 19 - 30 

8.   Any other urgent items which in the opinion of the Chair, may 
be considered. 
 

  

 
Charlotte Benjamin 
Director of Legal and Governance Services 

 
Town Hall 
Middlesbrough 
Wednesday, 5 March 2025 
 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Mayor C Cooke (Chair) and Councillors P Storey (Vice-Chair), E Clynch, L Henman, 
D Jackson, L Mason, M Nugent, Z Uddin and L Young 
 
Assistance in accessing information 
 
Should you have any queries on accessing the Agenda and associated information 
please contact Chris Lunn, 01642 729742, chris_lunn@middlesbrough.gov.uk 
 

Page 1



This page is intentionally left blank



You Matter to Us - Corporate Parenting Board 30 January 2025 
 

 
 

YOU MATTER TO US - CORPORATE PARENTING BOARD 
 
A meeting of the You Matter to Us - Corporate Parenting Board was held on Thursday, 30 January 
2025. 
 
PRESENT:  Mayor C Cooke (Chair), P Storey (Vice-Chair), L Henman, D Jackson and Z Uddin. 

 
ALSO IN 
ATTENDANCE: 

R Baker - Cleveland Police 
A Hart - Care Ambassador 
M Larkin - NHS 
H Sharp - Care Ambassador 
C O’Connor - Care Ambassador. 

 
OFFICERS: D Alaszewski, V Banks, C Cannon, S Disbury, T Dunn, R Horniman, A Humble,  

C Lunn, C McGarry, G Nicholson, K Peacock and J Tynan.    
 
APOLOGIES FOR 
ABSENCE: 

 
Councillors E Clynch, M Nugent and L Young. 

 
24/8 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 
 There were no declarations of interest received at this point in the meeting.  

 
24/9 MINUTES - YOU MATTER TO US - CORPORATE PARENTING BOARD - 3 OCTOBER 

2024 
 

 The minutes of the You Matter to Us - Corporate Parenting Board meeting held on 3 October 
2024 were submitted and approved as a correct record. 
 

24/10 CARE EXPERIENCED YOUTH UPDATE 
 

 Three Care Ambassadors, together with the Voice and Influence Manager delivered the Care 
Experienced Youth Update, which covered the period May to December 2024. 
 
The following matters were raised/ discussed: 
 

 One of the Care Ambassadors had attended a regional residential event with other 
young people from different regions and learnt about other Councils’ work, and 
improvements still needed.  Reference was made to work currently taking place 
around changes in language to enhance inclusivity.   

 Care Ambassadors had attended a housing engagement event.  During discussion, a 
Member queried progress in relation to housing provision.  In response, the Director 
of Regeneration explained that tender documents for development works and support 
packages had gone out earlier in the day.  Other work would take place when the new 
housing related post was made live.  Properties were being purchased and would be 
refurbished as required; it was hoped that contractors would be in place by 31 March 
2025. 

 The Care Ambassadors had presented at Children’s Participants Week, which they 
felt was a positive experience.  It enabled the young people to showcase their lives 
and what needed to change and it had been inspirational to hear from other 
individuals. 

 The Care Ambassadors had created a video for SHiFT.  

 The Care Ambassadors had attended an awards ceremony in Manchester where they 
had received an award in their category.  A number of activities were participated in; it 
had been a very positive experience. 

 The Youth Council had helped to run a conference at HeadStart. 

 Work had taken place to promote You Matter to Us welcome packs that were provided 
to young people entering care.  The packs provided information to recipients and 
ensured that their voices were heard.    

 Several events had been held across the period, including Halloween and Christmas 
parties.  85 young people had attended for Halloween and 16 young people for 
Christmas.  Consideration had been given as to how young people may have felt, 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



30 January 2025 

 

emotionally, when attending such events, and activities planned accordingly.  The 
events had been well received; positive feedback was read out to the Board. 

 The Voice, Influence and Change Group had been undertaking various activities, 
including: 

- Participating in discussions around changing language/ terminology to become 
more inclusive and person friendly.  A Change in Language Guide, which had 
been produced in consultation with young people, would be published next month.  
- Meeting with OFSTED, who had been very impressed with the work of the Care  
Ambassadors, as well as senior leaders and key decision makers to discuss the  
work and role of young people leaders. 
- Visits to Ninja Warrior and Scream Factory. 
- Over the next couple of months, opportunities for care experienced young 
adults, e.g. apprenticeships and volunteering, would be looked into.  In addition to 
this work, an engagement and communications plan would be established with 
Pathways.  
 

 Following relocation, the Care Ambassadors had recently attended a launch event for 
the Live Well Centre, which was very well attended. 

 
A discussion ensued in relation to language and the potential impact that certain terminology 
could have on young people.  The importance of positive and inclusive language was 
highlighted.  As an example, the Care Ambassadors referred to the term ‘care leavers’ and 
indicated that this would be changed to ‘care experienced’, as it was felt to be more positive 
and professional.  It was suggested that once the ‘Change in Language Guide’ had been 
published, it would be useful for a link to be provided to all Board Members/ representatives.  
In addition, it was felt that this would be a positive news story to share widely via the Council’s 
Communications Team. 
 
An NHS representative referred to the large geographical area covered by the Integrated Care 
Board (ICB) and queried whether a regional role/ influential voice could be established.  In 
response, the Care Ambassador advised that a Regional Co-ordinator role had been created 
and would be appointed to in due course.  It was indicated that SHiFT had requested that the 
Care Ambassadors travel to London to discuss any matters in relevant forums.  The NHS 
representative queried whether any assistance could be provided to the Care Ambassadors at 
the present time.  In response, an Ambassador requested that the representative relay back, 
through the appropriate channels, the work that had been taking place in relation to language 
change. 
 
A Cleveland Police representative commented on the excellent work that had been taking 
place and featured in the report.  The Care Ambassadors were advised that the Police were 
able and willing to work with them in order to develop a more generalised understanding of 
young people, and to develop practice in various areas of policing.  The Care Ambassadors 
thanked the representative and welcomed the suggestion. 
 
A Member referred to the videos shown at the SHiFT launch and commented on both the 
positive and emotional participation made by the Care Ambassadors with these.  The 
Executive Director of Children’s Services referred to language change and OFSTED being 
held to account by the Care Ambassadors in relation to this.  It was noted that the Care 
Ambassadors had been in place for two years and opportunities to strengthen their roles were 
currently being progressed.  The Director would be in attendance at the next young peoples’ 
meeting in late February to observe proceedings.  Reference was made to increased 
mentoring work and improved access to digital means for young people that was currently 
being progressed.  Matters around financial support would also be looked into. 
  
An NHS representative referred to the possibility of holding informal sessions between formal 
meetings, to hear more from young people.  The Democratic Services Officer would look into 
this. 
 
The Chair thanked the Care Ambassadors and the Voice and Influence Manager for their 
attendance and contributions to the meeting. 
 
AGREED that: 
 
 

Page 4



30 January 2025 

 

1. The publication of the ‘Change in Language Guide’ would be discussed with the 
Council’s Communications Team to determine whether a news story could help 
publicise it. 

2. The information, as presented, was noted. 
 

24/11 YOU MATTER TO US - PERFORMANCE 
 

 **Owing to overlap in the reports for agenda items 5 and 6, the Board agreed to consider 
those items simultaneously.** 
 
The Director of Children’s Care provided an update to the Board in respect of performance 
and Children in care. 
 
The following matters were raised/ discussed: 
 

 Performance/ statistical information in relation to various areas, including the number 
of children currently in care; regional vs. national placements; children in care and 
permanency plans; and rates in respect of adoptions and resident orders. 

 The work being undertaken by dedicated staff to return children back into families; 31 
children were currently being assessed.  Work was taking place with courts to 
progress orders, which  had been successful.  

 The importance of prevention work to deter young people entering care and the 
escalation of risk. 

 A Member referred to the reasons why care had ceased and queried what these 
were.  In response, the Director of Children’s Care advised that these would be 
clarified. 

 The number of children in care was reducing, but it was highlighted that the goal was 
simply not to reduce numbers; it was about ensuring the best interests of the child and 
returning them to families where it was safe and able to do so.  It was noted that a 
new team had recently been established to assist in supporting families and 
preventing entry to care.  A financial grant had been received from the DfE, which 
would help to facilitate the return to family work.  Consideration was given to the 
complexity of workloads and ensuring that the correct decisions were taken for 
children, from the outset.  Assessment work was completed over several months to 
achieve the most appropriate outcome for the child/ren; the processes involved in this 
work were outlined to the Board.   

 In relation to children missing, the representative from Cleveland Police referred to a 
child inspection report/ assessment and explained that around 300 missing from 
home reports were received each month, with about one third of these being CLA (7% 
of those assessed were deemed high risk; nationally this figure was 12%).  Currently, 
35% of overall children missing were classed as high risk.  The Board noted that the 
number of reports involving children missing from care homes had reduced; reference 
was made to strategies that had assisted with this, including following the Philomena 
Protocol.  The Executive Director of Children’s Care commented on the challenges 
experienced in terms of children missing and referred to the internal procedures and 
communications currently in place.  It was felt that it would be beneficial for strategic 
meetings between the police and the Local Authority to review processes and further 
develop links.  Representatives discussed the involvement of the National Advocacy 
Service; the role, structure and supporting of return home interviews; monthly 
reporting mechanisms; safeguarding; and reasons why children went missing.   

 Young people Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEETs) and the support 
being provided by the work readiness team and the Employment Hub.  It was felt that 
the Care Ambassador role could be offered on an ongoing basis.          

 A Member referred to page 24 of the agenda pack and the accommodation and 
homelessness statistics provided; some of the information was unknown.  In 
response, it was explained that the data sets did require further review. 

 A Member referred to Special Guardian Orders and queried the current position.  In 
response, the Board was advised that a large scale piece of work was taking place as 
part of the transformation programme.  Consideration was given to the work being 
carried out by individuals in caring for family members and the support that was being 
provided to them by the Local Authority. 

 A Member referred to page 18 of the agenda pack and commented on the importance 
of context when looking at the duration of placements.  The Director of Children’s 

Page 5



30 January 2025 

 

Care indicated that, historically, permanency plans were not always progressed as 
wanted, however, these were now reviewed on a regular basis, with care planning 
meetings taking place.  Reference was made to work currently on-going, which 
focused on children’s homes, the duration of placements and long term planning. 

 A Member referred to external placements outside of Middlesbrough, which were 
currently at their lowest level since 2019.  It was queried whether the trajectory was 
decreasing.  In response, the Board was advised that this was difficult to confirm.  
Work focused on making all attempts to keep children within Middlesbrough; care 
plans were being reviewed and the Family Placement Panel continued to operate.  It 
was felt that things were moving in the right direction.  It was indicated that a 20-mile 
boundary had been established in terms of allocating young people to care homes.  In 
response to a query, the Board heard that the number of young people in external 
placement varied between 72-77, dependent upon the children entering care and the 
number of foster carers available.  

 A Care Ambassador referred to the plans for the new children’s homes in 
Middlesbrough and queried whether, once in operation, feedback boxes could be 
installed to enable the young people to provide feedback.  In response, it was felt that 
this would be a positive initiative. 

 
The Chair thanked the officer for the report and contributions to the meeting. 
 
AGREED that: 
 

1. The Director of Children’s Care would seek clarification regarding the statistics 
and reasons as to why care sometimes ceased. 

2. The Director of Children’s Care would look to obtain further information 
regarding the ‘Accommodation types of 19-21 year olds’ statistics. 

3. The information, as presented, was noted. 
 

24/12 CHILDREN IN CARE UPDATE 
 

 As per minute no. 24/17. 
 

24/13 VIRTUAL SCHOOL - VIRTUAL COLLEGE APP - TASK AND FINISH GROUP - UPDATE 
 

 The Head of Virtual School provided a verbal update in relation to the Virtual College app. 
 
The following matters were raised/ discussed: 
 

 The Board heard that the purpose of the app was for young people to access support 
and, to achieve the best from it, input from social care and education teams was 
paramount.  The Director of Children’s Care had held discussions with potential 
providers in terms of the content of the app, deliverability and other key features.  
Three companies were currently being looked at; the importance of scoping and 
ensuring selection of the most appropriate app was highlighted. 

 A Care Ambassador commented that not all young people found apps conducive and 
queried whether a trial would take place with potential users.  In response, it was 
indicated that a trial would be arranged.  A short discussion ensued in relation to cost 
and accountability of apps, and the importance of input and testing by intended users.  
There was some concern raised from the Care Ambassadors in terms of a potential 
loss in personal connection between young people and professionals, but officers felt 
that the app would complement interaction because many young people shared 
information on apps that they otherwise could not verbalise, such as suicidal thoughts 
and feelings of loneliness and/or isolation.  It was indicated that, at a previous meeting 
where the early stages of the app had been considered, positive feedback had been 
received. 

 The Mayor suggested that, if possible, an informal meeting of the You Matter to Us - 
Corporate Parenting Board would be arranged within the next six weeks to consider 
the following matters: ‘Change in Language’ guide; demonstration of the app; and 
return home interviews. 

 
AGREED that: 
 
 

Page 6



30 January 2025 

 

1. An informal meeting of the You Matter to Us - Corporate Parenting Board 
would be scheduled, within the next six weeks, if possible, to consider the 
following: ‘Change in Language’ guide; a demonstration of the Virtual 
College app; and return home interviews. 

2. The information, as presented, was noted. 
 

24/14 LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN PROGRESS AND ATTAINMENT - AUTUMN TERM 2024 
 

 The Head of Virtual School provided an update regarding Looked After Children Progress and 
Attainment, which covered the Autumn term 2024. 
  
As a preliminary point, it was explained to the Board that the snapshot data covered a short 
period of time with low cohorts.  As such, Members were advised to exercise caution when 
making any inferences from the data. 
 
The following matters were raised/ discussed: 
 

 Children Looked After demographics. 

 Attitude to learning by year group.  As the data was designated teachers’ input, it was 
suggested that information from a children’s perspective be included in future reports, 
if relevant and appropriate.  Members felt that this would be useful. 

 The context of Looked After Children was important to understand the progress being 
made by students.  65% of Looked After Children were making good progress; 18% 
were still being assessed.  Progress was impacted at KS3 and KS4.  Year 3 also 
showed less progress while Years 1 and 2 did well, with over 85% making good 
progress in all areas. 

 The statistics for KS4 and KS11 progression were low.  The importance of context for 
Looked After Children was reiterated; barriers included: children being new to care; 
difficulties in recruiting foster carers for teenagers; significant medical issues; changes 
in schools; and EBSA.  14 Children in KS4 were not currently on a school roll.     

 Placement changes had a significant impact; each additional change of care 
placement after age 11 was associated with one-third of a grade less at GCSE.  From 
Years 7 to 11, there was currently 185 Looked After Children.  96% of Looked After 
Children had moved placement since entering care; almost 25% of secondary school 
aged Looked After Children had had five or more placement moves since entering 
care. 

 In terms of school changes, it was noted that young people in care who had changed 
school in Years 10 or 11 scored over five grades less than those who did not.  21 of 
88 students in KS4 had experienced a school move. 

 Regarding school absence, for every 5% of possible school sessions missed due to 
school absences, young people in care scored over two grades less at GCSE.  From 
Years 7 to 11, 86 out of 187 students were below 95%. 

 Overall attendance for all statutory school aged Looked After Children from 1 
September to 22 November 2024 was 86.2%. 8.1% of absences were authorised, and 
5.8% of absences were unauthorised.  Overall attendance by key stage was: KS1 – 
94.5%; KS2 – 97.8%; KS3 – 85.6%; and KS4 – 70.3%. 

 In terms of school suspensions, it was noted that these had significant impact.  For 
every additional day of school missed due to fixed-term suspensions, young people in 
care scored one-sixth of a grade less at GCSE.  From Years 6 to 11, 23 students had 
been suspended.  Since the start of the academic year, from 1 September to 22 
November 2024 , there had been a total of 42 suspensions, for 85 days, by 21 
children.  Of the 21 children that had had a suspension this academic year: 
 
- 11 (52.4%) were female. 
- 12 (57.1%) were suspended from a school within Middlesbrough 
- 1 (4.8%) child was in KS2, 7 (33.3%) were in KS3, and 13 (61.9%) were in KS4. 
- 5 (23.8%) had an EHCP, 12 (57.1%) had SEN support, and 4 (19%) had no SEN. 

 

 Regarding placement type, it was indicated that young people living in residential or 
another form of care at age 16 scored over six grades less than those who were in 
kinship or foster care. 53 students were not placed in kinship or foster care. 

 In terms of school type, young people who were in special schools at age 16 scored 
over 14 grades lower in their GCSEs compared to those with the same characteristics 

Page 7



30 January 2025 

 

who were in mainstream schools.  Those in pupil referral units with the same 
characteristics scored almost 14 grades lower.  From years 7 to 11, 58 out of 187 
students, attended a provision other than a mainstream school. 

 
The Chair thanked the Head of Virtual School for the information provided. 
 
AGREED that: 
 

1. The Head of Virtual School would look into the suggestion of including 
information from the children’s perspective, in future ‘attitude to learning’ 
reports. 

2. The information, as presented, was noted. 
 

24/15 LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN ATTENDANCE AND SUSPENSION - AUTUMN TERM 2024 
 

 The Head of Virtual School provided an update regarding attendance and suspension for 
Looked After Children in respect of the autumn term 2024. 
 
The following matters were raised/ discussed: 
 

 Good school attendance was defined as attending school at least 95% of the time.  
This meant that a student should not have missed more than 10 days in a school 
year.  High attendance rates were crucial because they were directly linked to 
academic success and overall well-being.   

 The difference between authorised and non-authorised attendance was key.  It was 
indicated that further work was required with schools to understand how this was 
being managed. 

 The overall attendance for all statutory school aged Looked After Children from 1 
September to 22 November 2024 was 86.2%.  8.1% of absences were authorised; 
5.8% of absences were unauthorised.  Overall attendance by key stage was: KS1 – 
94.5%; KS2 – 97.8%; KS3 – 85.6%; and KS4 – 70.3%.  The issue of attendance in 
Middlesbrough had been recognised and work was taking place to address it. 

 A Member queried whether attendance changed in the period between a young 
person entering and leaving care.  In response, the Board heard that attendance on 
the whole did improve; statistics would be provided.   

 Permanent exclusion of Looked After Children was considered a last resort due to the 
significant impact it could have on their education and well-being.  National guidance 
encouraged schools to work closely with social workers and virtual schools to provide 
support and prevent exclusions whenever possible.  Although there had been four 
occasions where a child had come close to exclusion this year, no Middlesbrough 
Looked After Child had been excluded for seven years.  Nationally in 2022/23, 50 
Looked After Children had been excluded.  The Board heard that an inclusion strategy 
was in place to assist with exclusion and suspension issues. 

 The Board heard that more vulnerable children with HCP were more likely to be 
suspended.  Safeguarding training for designated teachers had been undertaken.  
Members discussed the multiple roles that designated teachers may have had - the 
Head of Virtual School indicated that this would be raised at a future Annual Virtual 
School Conference.     

 A Member referred to mental health in respect of school-age females and queried 
whether dialogue could be opened with this age group to determine why they felt they 
were being excluded.  The Head of Virtual School advised that this would be looked 
into. 

 Work had been taking place in respect of SEND and ensuring that inclusion priorities 
had been identified and supported. 
 

The Chair thanked the Head of Virtual School for the information provided. 
 
AGREED that: 
 

1. The Head of Virtual School would look at the possibility of providing  statistics 
to show the change in attendance figures of young people before entering care 
and then afterwards as a care experienced young person. 

2. In relation to school exclusions and the deterioration of mental health in 
schools, particularly amongst girls, the Head of Virtual School would look into 

Page 8



30 January 2025 

 

the suggestion of asking pupils why they felt they were being excluded. 
3. The information, as presented, was noted. 

 
24/16 LOOKED AFTER CHILDREN WITH SEND 

 
 The Head of Virtual School provided an update regarding Looked After Children with SEND. 

 
The following matters were raised/ discussed: 
 

 Compared to national Looked After Children, there was less diagnosed SEND for 
Middlesbrough Looked After Children. 

 More Middlesbrough Looked After Children had a SEND support plan than an EHCP. 

 Nationally, Looked After Children with an EHCP was 54%; Middlesbrough Looked 
After Children were below with 22% of school aged Looked After Children with an 
EHCP. 

 65% OF EHCPs were for SEMH needs. 

 The second highest primary need was Cognition and Learning and Autistic Spectrum 
Continuum. 

 There were 28% more males than females with an EHCP. 

 There were more Looked After Children with an EHCP attending a school in the 
Borough; however, the data showed that more young people in Years 8 and 10 
attended an out of Borough school. 

 KS4 had the highest number of Looked After Children with an EHCP at 48%.  

 There were 19 Looked After Children with SEND who were not receiving 25 hours of 
education; 15 with an EHCP and 4 with SEN support. 

 There were 11 CLA with SEND that were not on a school roll; 10 with an EHCP and 1 
with SEN support. 

 Since the start of the academic year, from 1 September to 22 November 2024, 5 
(23.8%) Looked After Children who had an EHCP had been suspended; 12 (57.1%) 
with SEN support had been suspended and 4 (19%) with no SEN had been 
suspended. 

 Post-16: 32 (52.5%) of the 61 young people with SEND were EET. 

 Details regarding SEND and inclusion support made available for school level; 
inclusion and outreach; and EHCP were provided. 

 A case study was provided to the Board. 

 The SEND and inclusion priorities 2025 were outlined to Members, as follows: 
 

- Reduce suspensions and exclusions for children and young people with SEND. 
- Reintegration into mainstream for children and young people who had been  

     permanently excluded. 
- Greater inclusion for children and young people with an EHC Plan in mainstream  
  schools. 
- Implementation of the Ranges document to support appropriate identification of  
  needs and timely interventions to support children and young people with SEND. 
- Full implementation of CAPITA Portal for the digitisation of EHC Plans. 
- Continue to transform Annual Review process for existing EHC Plans. 

   
The Chair thanked the Head of Virtual School for the information provided. 
 
NOTED 
 

24/17 YOU MATTER TO US - CORPORATE PARENTING BOARD - WORK PROGRAMME 
 

 The Chair advised that the Work Programme was currently being looked at in terms of 
allocating the remaining reports scheduled for this year, to the two meetings that were left, i.e. 
13 March 2025 and 3 April 2025. 
   
The Chair advised that the Work Programme would be circulated to all officers/ 
representatives for review.  It was requested that the officers/ representatives identify an 
appropriate meeting date for their respective reports to be assigned, and advise the 
Democratic Services Officer accordingly. 
 
 

Page 9



30 January 2025 

 

AGREED that: 
 

1. The Democratic Services Officer would email the Work Programme to officers/ 
representatives; officers/ representatives to allocate respective reports to the 
appropriate meeting date and advise the Democratic Services Officer 
accordingly.  

2. The information, as presented, was noted. 
 

24/18 ANY OTHER URGENT ITEMS WHICH IN THE OPINION OF THE CHAIR, MAY BE 
CONSIDERED. 
 

 None. 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 10



Middlesbrough's Participation Team facilitates open, safe, and

inclusive spaces for people to tell us what is important to them. We

capture this information and support them to tell key decision

makers, so improvements are made to the support they and others

receive.



















Care Ambassadors 

Care experienced young adults (two of which are Co opted onto the 'You Matter to Us'

Corporate Parenting Board).

Three young adults volunteer in this role.

They have an opportunity to support all the engagement activities with cared for and care

experienced young people. They also have opportunities to support the wider engagement

work - Working with students with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities, the Youth

Council and Parent/Carer engagement as part of the Family Hubs.    

'We Matter' (Middlesbrough's Children in Care Council) 

Care experienced young people aged 11 - 16 years meet fortnightly at Easterside Hub 17:00 -

18:30pm. 

Members include five young people (two young people in private residential care, two in a

independent foster home and one who lives with her aunt who hopes to make it a Special

Guardianship arrangement).

They have fun, have a voice and create events to hear from their care experienced peers 

They share their views with key decision makers who act on what they say and positively

change services to meet their needs.

'Voice, Influence and Change' 

Older care experienced young adults 16-25 years meet monthly at the Live Well centre 17:00-

18:30pm 

Members include three care ambassadors and three care experienced adults. 

We support our cared for and care experienced young people/adults to be

engaged in a variety of different ways.

The groups are supported by:-  

Kathy Peacock - Voice and Influence Manager

Adam Hart , Hollie Sharp and Caitlin O'Connor - Volunteer Care Ambassadors

Kalicha Halake Miyo, Jacob Green, Alisha James - Care experienced adults volunteers

Xavier Davies - Older care experienced volunteer 

Abiola Dodo- Adult - Non care experienced volunteer 

Care Experienced Youth Voice 
January - February 2025 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



Care Ambassadors 






They met with Pathways and are developing an engagement and events plan for 2025. They will all

meet once a month to look at progress.

They met with Tracy Jelfs (Head of Corporate Parenting and Fostering) to discuss progress and will

continue to meet every six weeks - to include other Key Decision Makers. 

They will be asked to support several events during Social Work Week. 

'We Matter'






The group had a visit from Susie Turner - Fostering Service Manager. She asked the group their

thoughts on the fostering feedback forms cared for young people are given. This work is

continuing.

Two members of the group who are attending the Regional CiCC residential in April, attended a

Regional meeting hosted by Sunderland. All the Cared for and Care experienced young people

present were asked their views on what should be discussed at this years Regional CiCC

conference. They were asked what their views were on being supported to be Digitally Inclusive

and they were given information about the residential. We have the Care Ambassador attending

the residential as well. 

They worked with the fostering service to put on an event at Jump 360. Two members attended

and supported 16 young people to have a voice. The fostering team asked the children who foster

about their experiences and the fostered young people were asked questions about who they go

to for support, how they share their views in their cared for meeting and what they thought about

using an APP to share their views.  

'Voice, Influence and Change'





Over the next few months:
The Care Ambassadors would like a decision to be made on the opportunities and

incentives that should be made available to care experienced young adults - Including

Apprenticeships and Volunteering. 

The change the Language will go Live mid March 2025 

For more information contact the Voice and Influence Manager Kathy_peacock@middlesbrough.gov.uk









The group meets the first Wednesday of every month. Numbers are still low and Pathways are

working hard to get their young adults there.

Pathways will identify two champions in the team to promote participation and events .

One member of Pathways will attend the Voice, Influence and Change group.

We are having a fun event on the 26th March inviting young adults to come together at Level X,

have fun, then food.

Page 12



 

1 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

MIDDLESBROUGH COUNCIL 
 

 
Report of: Director of Children’s Care 

 

Relevant Executive 
Member: 

Executive Member for Children’s Services 

 

Submitted to: You Matter to Us - Corporate Parenting Board 

 

Date: 13 March 2025 

 

Title: Children in Care Update 

 

Report for: Information 

 

Status: Public 

 

Council Plan 
priority: 

Safe and resilient communities 

 

Key decision: Not applicable 

Why: Report is for information only 

 

Subject to call in?: Not applicable 

Why: Not applicable 

 

 

Executive summary  

The information below provides an update for the Corporate Parenting Board for March 
2025. The report is an outline of current numbers of children in our care and their 
circumstances in relation to permanence and education, training and employment.  
 
The report is intended for information and further discussion by the committee.  

 
  

Proposed decision(s) 

No decision required, information only.  

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 

2 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
1. Purpose 

 
1.1  To inform the committee of the current numbers and brief circumstances of children in  

our care.  
1.2  To inform the committee of actions being taken to improve the experience and outcomes 

for children in our care.  
 
 
2. Recommendations  

 
2.1 That the Corporate Parenting Board 
 

 Acknowledges the information presented.  

 Makes any recommendations and actions required. 
 
3. Rationale for the recommended decision(s) 

 
3.1  Not applicable 
 
 
4. Background and relevant information 

 
4.1 We currently have 508 children who are cared for. 345 are supported by the Children 

Looked After Teams. 21 of our cared for young people are supported by Social Workers 
in the Children with Disability Service. 147 children and young people are subject to 
permanence planning within the Safeguarding and Care Planning Service and 3 children 
are cared for and open to the Assessment Teams. 
 

4.2 Of those subject to care planning the majority are subject to legal processes in order to 
determine children’s plans of permanence. We have 2 children in our care who are 
currently subject to Deprivation of Liberty Orders under the jurisdiction of the Court of 
Protection. 

 
4.3 The additional 3 Social Workers in the cared for teams, funded by the DfE, will cease 

this month, as a result of the funding coming to an end. Although reunification work was 
already underway in the Corporate Parenting Service, this gave us additional capacity to 
review all children, open to the cared for children’s teams. An additional 1.5 workers were 
also recruited for the Safeguarding and Care Planning Service to provide a similar 
resource. Reviews have continued to determine whether other Orders are suitable. This 
work has also assisted us to understand the barriers to carers pursuing alternative 
orders. It is apparent that funding and support post Order are the key concerns for carers. 
Increasingly we are in receipt of requests for the equivalent of Staying Put funds post 18 
years for young people, before carers will consider becoming long-term carers for a child 
or young person.  

 

4.4 The process of reunification is lengthy to complete the necessary assessments, as well 
as obtaining adult medicals for potential carers and updated DBS checks, which causes 
delay. In addition, the Court will allocate hearings when space in timetables allows, which 

Page 14



 

3 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

can also impact on timeliness. As much work as possible is completed prior to the case 
being filed to Court, to reduce delay once within this arena. However, on occasion, 
Guardians have not completed their work prior to the first hearing and request that the 
hearing is adjourned for them to complete their tasks, therefore creating further delay.   

 

4.5  There were 4 applications for discharges of Care Orders made in February. The plan to 
apply for an additional 2 discharges of Care Orders continues to progress and will be 
made in March/April. One child’s Care Order to be discharged has been filed with Court 
and a date is awaited. 6 applications for Special Guardian Orders will be made by the 
end of March. Work will continue regarding reunification and discharging of Orders, when 
the DfE workers finish. This will be from within the current teams across cared for teams 
and safeguarding and care planning, as this will be ‘business as usual’, for the service. 
Work has progressed with the teams over the past year, to move to a culture where Care 
Orders are continually reviewed, as opposed to being in place until a young person 
reaches 18, as well as work with the Courts to seek the least intrusive Order at the final 
hearing. This planning is progressed with the support of the IRO’s who review plans for 
children and young people.  

 

4.6 The Corporate Parenting Service has been working to establish a permanent workforce. 
In March 2024, there were no permanent managers within the Corporate Parenting area 
of the service. As of the 1st April 2025, the Head of Service, Service Manager and all 4 
Team Manager roles will have permanent staff in them. All of the post holders were here 
with Middlesbrough on an agency basis and have converted to permanent posts. This 
has provided consistency for staff within the service, but also for the children, young 
people and families, during this transition. Similar work has progressed in the 
Safeguarding and Care Planning Service. 

 

4.7 Approval was given in February 2025, for the Modernising Fostering transformation 
project to begin. This project covers a range of tasks. It will see the creation of a Kinship 
Team, which will provide support to carers, when Orders, such as, Special Guardianship 
Orders or Child Arrangement Orders have been granted. The service will also implement 
a review process to check that Support Plans continue to meet need or amendments can 
be made as required, to reflect changes within the family. The Team Manager has been 
recruited for this team and the Social Workers are now being recruited.    

 

4.8 We are continuing to recruit foster carers, so that children and young people can live with 
carers who can meet their needs, locally. The aim is to reduce the use of Independent 
Fostering Agencies and residential children’s homes, where appropriate. A review has 
commenced, of all children who have had 2+ moves, to further develop the wrap around 
support to foster carers. This seeks to have support plans in place, so that support is 
available to them at the earliest opportunity, should escalations of concern occur, to 
stabilise placements. We will establish a Mockingbird Constellation, which provides a 
model of linking foster carers, to create their own support network within their 
constellation. This is a recognised model for foster carers and is established in other 
Local Authorities.   

 

Page 15



 

4 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

4.9  Regarding 16 and 17 year olds, we have 111 young people. 14% (16) young people are 
not in employment, education or training (NEET and 60% (67) are in employment, 
education or training (EET). 28 children show as having no defined outcome and data is 
being worked on within the teams to resolve the recording issues. 

 

4.10 There are 249 care experienced young people who are open to the Pathways 
Service.  71 are aged between 21 and 25, with 176 aged between 18 and 21. 47% (118) 
care experienced young people are not in employment, education or training (NEET), 
51% (127) are in employment, education or training (EET). 4 young people show as 
having no defined outcome and data is being worked on within the teams to resolve the 
recording issues. 

 

4.11 The Pathways Service has continued to develop following the focused visit by Ofsted 
in July 2024. Work continues with Housing and Health to advise needs as soon as they 
are known, to assist with forward planning. A Care Leavers Hub is being established to 
replace the pop-up drop ins.  

 
5. Other potential alternative(s) and why these have not been recommended 

 
5.1 Not applicable 

 
6. Impact(s) of the recommended decision(s) 

 
6.1 Not applicable information only report. 

 

6.2 Human Rights, Public Sector Equality Duty and Community Cohesion 
 
6.3 Not applicable information only report 

 

6.4 Climate Change / Environmental 
 

6.5  Not applicable information only report 
 

6.6 Children and Young People Cared for by the Authority and Care Leavers 
 

6.7 Considered within the report.  
 

6.8 Data Protection 
 
 
Actions to be taken to implement the recommended decision(s) 
 
None – report for information only. 
 
 
Appendices 
 
None. 

Page 16



 

5 

This document was classified as: OFFICIAL 

 
Background papers 
 
None. 
 
 
Contact:  Tracy Jelfs 
Email:  tracy_jelfs@middlesbrough.gov.uk 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



 This document was classified as: OFFICIAL #

Data to Insight is the sector-led service for local authority children's data professionals, working with 

support from the ADCS, DLUHC, DfE and Ofsted to help make better use of data.

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT) 
Based on Ofsted's ILACS Annex A dataset / Inspection Report

Middlesbrough

05 March 2025

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 7

https://www.datatoinsight.org/


 This document was classified as: OFFICIAL #

*Annualised rate for comparison purposes Other' includes not recorded, not stated, or neither M/F *Annualised rate for comparison purposes Other' includes not recorded, not stated, or neither M/F

Rate of CLA ceased per 10,000 children 

#REF!

23% 18% 11%

89 CLA started in the last 6 months 72 CLA ceased in the last 6 months

Children Looked After (CLA) started and ceased in the last 6 months

14%

5 of the 89 CLA starters 

were unaccompanied 

asylum seeking children 

(UASC)

LA

Reason episode of care ceased

Comparing the primary need of CLA starters

Adopted

8%

6%

Special Guardianship Order

SNs
11%

Last 6 

months Eng

8%

Rate of CLA started per 10,000 children Age and gender Age and gender

6%

2023-24 (published)

from

Last 6 

months

2023-24 (published)
LA SNs Eng

to

8%

05 March 2025

06/09/2024
05/03/2025

8%

Page 12

5 of the 89 CLA 

starters have 

previously been 

looked after

9%

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT)

6

0

0

6

8

6

6

5

0

1

0

0

0

34

0

Adopted

Died

Care taken by another LA

Returned home to live with parents/ relatives

Live with parents/relatives (not PR)

Residence order granted

Special Guardianship Orders

Moved into independent living

Transferred to residential care funded by ASS

Sentenced to custody

Accommodation on remand ended

Age assessment determined child was 18+

Child moved abroad

Any other reason

Not recorded / Error

Number of CLA  ceased by reason in the period

10 5 0 5 10

Age 0

5

10

15

Age 20+

48 Males (54%) 35 Females (39%)

5 UASC M (6%) 0 UASC F (0%)

1 Other (not shown) (3%)

20 10 0 10 20

Age 0

5

10

15

Age 20+

38 Males (53%) 31 Females (43%)

3 UASC M (4%) 0 UASC F (0%)

0 Other (not shown) (0%)
90

68
59

72

59
51

0

20

40

60

80

100

'19-20 '20-21 '21-22 '22-23 '23-24 Q2

2023/24

(RIIA)

Last

6ms*

ra
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0

SNs Eng LA

61

84 82

69
59

41

0

20

40

60

80

100

'19-20 '20-21 '21-22 '22-23 '23-24 Q2

2023/24

(RIIA)

Last

6ms*

ra
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0

SNs Eng LA

100

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0

20

40

60

80

100

120

Abuse or

neglect

Child's

disability

Parents

illness or

disability

Family in

acute stress

Family

dysfunction

Socially

unacceptable

behaviour

Low income Absent

parenting

Not

recorded

Code error

%
 o

p
e
n

 C
L
A

Last 6 months LA 23-24 SNs 23-24 Eng 23-24

P
age 20



 This document was classified as: OFFICIAL #

White Return to family
Mixed Adoption
Asian or Asian British SGO/CAO
Black or black British Supported living
Other ethnic group L/T residential
Not stated L/T fostering
Not recorded Other

Not recorded

Other' includes not recorded, not stated, or neither M/F

40
30
42

#REF!

2%

Page 13

Comparing legal status of open CLA (snapshot)

0%

Age and gender

8%

Time since the child was last seen

0% 0%

2%

13%

Time since latest review

0%

10

29

0%

53%4%
3%

6%

40%
67

204

47 children 

(9%) with a 

disability

17 open unaccompanied asylum seeking children (UASC)

2%

Rate of CLA per 10,000 children (snapshot) Ethnic background

8% 8%

0%

Permanence plan

%

17%
6%

UASC as a percentage of CLA (snapshot)

05/03/2025Children Looked After (CLA) with an open episode of care

All CLA

508 Children Looked After (CLA) with an open episode of care

6%

Number

86

8%2% 2% 18%

Not UASC UASC

83%

18%

86% 6%

Snapshot

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT) 05 March 2025

35%

39%

16%

3%

2%

2%

3%

0%

a) 0 > 3 months

b) 3 > 6 months

c) 6 > 9 months

d) 9 > 12 months

e) 1 year or more

No review (New CLA <1month)

No review (CLA 1+ month)

Date error

81%

15%

2%

1%

1%

0%

0%

In the last 6 weeks

6 - 12 weeks ago

12 - 18 weeks ago

18 or more weeks ago

No visit (New CLA<1month)

No visit (CLA 1+month)

Date error

40 30 20 10 0 10 20 30 40

40 30 20 10 0 10 20 30 40

Age 0

5

10

15

Age 20+

277 Males (55%) 17 UASC Males (3%)

212 Females (42%) 0 UASC Females (0%)

2 Other (not shown) (0%) 0-17 population estimate

188
172

150 150 147 146

0

50

100

150

200

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 Q2

2023/24

(RIIA)

Latest

snapshot

ra
te

 p
e
r 

1
0
,0

0
0

SNs Eng LA

0 0 0
2

3 3

0

5

10

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 Q2

2023/24

(RIIA)

Latest

snapshot

%
 o

f 
o

p
e
n

 C
L
A

SNs Eng LA

16

64

0

5

15

1

0

0

0 20 40 60 80

Interim care order

Full care order

Freed for adoption

Placement order granted

Accommodated under S20

Detained on CP grounds in

LA accommodation

Youth justice legal status

Not recorded / code error

% open CLA

Latest snapshot LA 23-24 SNs 23-24 Eng 23-24P
age 21



 This document was classified as: OFFICIAL #

Placement type (open CLA)

Foster placement

Placed for adoption

Placed with parents

Independent living

Residential employment

Residential accommodation

Secure Children’s Homes

Children’s Homes

Residential Care Home

NHS/Health Trust

Family Centre

Young Offender Institution

Residential school

Other placements

Temporary placement

Total placements

0 0

00 0

249

0

May include "status" changes as well as placements

23

0

0

30

19

0

Eng 2023-24 67%

3583798223

0 0

0

Duration of latest placement for each current CLA aged under 16 who have been looked after for 2½ years or more
0

Comparing long term placement stability
0

1

0

0

0 0

Duration of placements20

Total

Eng 2023-24

0 1 1

43%
SNs 2023-24 67%

0

38

0

May include "status" changes as well as placements

0 0 0

0 0

OtherOwn LA Private

1

1

SNs 2023-24

Foster placements Own provision

49%

Children Looked After (CLA) placements

Number of placements in the last 12 months

0 0

6

0

0 57

0

0

2

Due to limited data in the Annex A dataset, ChAT does not present 

short-term stability alongside published statistics

176 83 508

CLA placements out of borough

Due to limited data in the Annex A dataset, ChAT does not present 

long-term stability alongside published statistics

1

17 0 18

0

#REF!

0

Comparing short term placement stability

48%

70%

Snapshot 05/03/2025

9 9

32 32

Page 14

LA 2023-24 46%LA 2023-24 70%

CLA placements by type and provision

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT) 05 March 2025

348

111

18

15

12

0

4

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7+

Not recorded

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

p
la

ce
m

e
n

ts

Foster

placements

Other

placements

Not recorded

Own

provision

Other

provision

Not recorded

16

14

21

34

106

0

0 > 3 months

3 >= 6 months

6 months > 1 year

1 year > 2 years

2+ years

Date error

53 52 54 55 56
52

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 Latest

snapshot

%
 o

f 
o

p
e
n

 C
L
A

SNs Eng LA

10

12
13

10
11

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24

%
 o

f 
o

p
e
n

 C
L
A

SNs Eng LA

69 66 65 62 59

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24

%
 o

f 
o

p
e
n

 C
L
A

 c
o

h
o

rt

SNs Eng LA

P
age 22



 This document was classified as: OFFICIAL #

Number of all CLA with a missing incident
Percentage of all CLA with a missing incident
Total number of missing incidents for all CLA
Average number of incidents per CLA who went missing

Missing children offered return interview
Missing children not offered return interview
Missing children return interview offer not recorded
Missing children where return interview was n/a

Missing children accepted return interview
Missing children not accepted return interview
Missing children return interview acceptance not recorded

Number of all CLA with an absent incident
Percentage of all CLA with an absent incident
Total number of absent incidents for all CLA
Average number of incidents per CLA who were absent

0 of 72 0%

Page 15

Number of missing episodes per CLA

Snapshot

49 of 72

22

Missing from placementHealth

6.5

Latest data

6.7

0%

05/03/2025

374 current open CLA looked after for at least 12 months

Children Looked After (CLA) health and missing/absent from placement

72 of 72

Latest data

11%

5.2
431
12%

0%

Missing incidents - return home interviews

16 of 72

c

Eng 23-24

c

###

Latest data

7 of 72

Health assessments

Dental checks

10%

72 of 580 looked after children had a missing incident in the last 12 months

Absent from placement

#REF!

Latest data LA 23-24
13 of 580

83

c
1.7

22%

2%

0 of 72

c

4.0

68%

0.8

2% 2%

0 of 72

SNs 23-24 Eng 23-24

SNs 23-24

7.4
532

11%
72 of 580

LA 23-24

12%

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT) 05 March 2025

Current open CLA who have been 

looked after for at least 12 months 

who have had a dental check in the 

last 12 months.

76%

88%

Current open CLA who have been 

looked after for at least 12 months 

with an up to date health 

assessment (in the last 6 months for 

CLA aged under 5, and in the last 

12 months for CLA aged 5-plus)

13 of 580 looked after children had an absent incident in the last 12 months

0

5

10

15

20

25

0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45 50+

N
u

m
b

e
r 

o
f 

C
L
A

93
91

95 94
91

88

80

85

90

95

100

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 Latest

snapshot%
 o

f 
C

L
A

 c
o

h
o

rt

SNs Eng LA

84

35

81 86 85 76

0

50

100

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 Latest

snapshot

%
 o

f 
C

L
A

 c
o

h
o

rt

SNs Eng LA

100%

68%

Offered RHI  Accepted RHI

P
age 23



 This document was classified as: OFFICIAL #

55

Relevant and Qualifying Children (16/17 year olds) - comparing personal advisor allocation and pathway plans

Eligible Children (16/17 year olds) - comparing personal advisor allocation and pathway plans

Care leavers eligibility, PA allocation and pathway plans Snapshot 05/03/2025

Page 16

0 0 0 52

23
24

#REF!

2 0 65
0 0 57 2 0 59

0 0 0 0 0

0

0 38

Total 106 4 349

470 care leavers who have reached the threshold for receiving leaving care services

3 0

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT) 05 March 2025

0 64 0 0 64
0 0 38 0 0 38
0 0 38 0

11

51 1

21
22

4 0 62
16
17
18
19
20

0 0 54 3 0 57
0 0 63

0 470

Care leaver eligibility summary (please refer to DfE guidance for full 

eligibility criteria)

Eligible

Relevant

Former 

Relevant

Qualifying

(Annex A 

requires only 

those 

requesting and 

receiving a 

service)

~ Age 16 or 17

~ Has been looked after for at least 13 weeks since age 14 (can 

be multiple periods)

~ Currently looked after

~ Age 16 or 17

~ Has been looked after for at least 13 weeks since age 14 (can 

be multiple periods)

~ Looked after on or after their 16th birthday

~ No longer looked after

~ Aged between 18 and 25

~ Previously an eligible or relevant child (see above definitions)

~ Aged between 16 and 21 (or 25 if in education)

~ Looked after on or after their 16th birthday

~ Not looked after for at least 13 weeks since age 14 or

~ privately fostered after the age of 16 but before the age of 18 

or

~ were looked after prior to becoming subject to a SGO

Care leavers by age and eligibility 
(where highlighted, please check eligibility/age criteria)

Eligible Relevant
Former 

Relevant
Qualifying Other Total

0 0 35 0 0 35
Other 0

22

67

45

78

33

55

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

16 17 Overall

%
 E

li
g

ib
le

 1
6
/1

7
 y

/o

Eligible 16/17 year olds by pathway plan

Pathway plan No pathway plan

0 0 0

100 100 100

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

16 17 Overall

%
 E

li
g

ib
le

 1
6
/1

7
 y

/o
 

Eligible 16/17 year olds by personal advisor 

allocation

PA Allocated No PA allocated

0 0 0

100 100 100

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

16 17 Overall

%
 R

e
le

va
n

t/
Q

u
a
li
fy

in
g

 1
6
/1

7
 y

/o

Relevant/Qualifying 16/17 year olds by pathway plan

Pathway plan No pathway plan

0 0 0

100 100 100

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

16 17 Overall

%
 R

e
le

va
n

t/
Q

u
a
li
fy

in
g

 1
6
/1

7
 y

/o

Relevant/Qualifying 16/17 year olds by personal 

advisor allocation

PA Allocated No PA allocated

P
age 24



 This document was classified as: OFFICIAL #

White
Mixed
Asian or Asian British
Black or black British
Other ethnic group
Not stated
Not recorded

Other' includes not recorded, not stated, or neither M/F

Care leavers demographics and UASC Snapshot 05/03/2025

Age and gender

76%
7%
5%

#REF!

Remained in care until aged 18

YP who ceased to be looked after aged 16-plus who were looked after until their 18th birthday

#REF!

44 (9%) care leavers with a 

disability

Care leavers - UASC/Former UASC (16/17 year olds)

Care leavers - UASC/Former UASC (17/18 & 19/20/21 year olds)

Remain with former foster carer

Aged 18 Aged 19-20

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT) 05 March 2025 Page 17

6%
6%
0%
0%

Ethnic background

60 40 20 0 20 40 60

15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

Age 25

287 Males (61%) 183 Females (39%)

0 Other (not shown) (0%)

100 100 100 100 100

86

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

'19-20 '20-21 '21-22 '22-23 '23-24 Last 6ms

%
 o

f 
Y

P

SNs Eng LA

63 58

87
6370 61 65 6860 62 61 62

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24

LA SNs Eng

36 35
23

32
38 41

47 44

30 31 32 32

2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24

LA SNs Eng

12
15 13

88
85 87

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

16 17 Overall

%
 E

li
g

ib
le

 1
6
/1

7
 y

/o
 

Eligible 16/17 year olds by UASC Status

UASC Not UASC

0 0 0

100 100 100

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

16 17 Overall

%
 R

e
le

va
n

t/
Q

u
a
li
fy

in
g

 1
6
/1

7
 y

/o

Relevant/qualifying 16/17 year olds by 

UASC Status

UASC Not UASC

0

11 11

100

89 89

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

17 18 Overall

%
 R

e
l/

F
o

rm
e
r 

R
e
l. 

1
7
/1

8
 y

/o
 

Relevant/former relevant 17/18 year olds 

by UASC Status

UASC/Former UASC Not UASC/Former UASC

10 9
5

8

90 91
95

92

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

19 20 21 Overall

%
 F

o
rm

e
r 

R
e
l. 

1
9
/2

0
/2

1
 y

/o
 

Former relevant 19/20/21 year olds by 

UASC Status

Former UASC Not former UASC

P
age 25



 This document was classified as: OFFICIAL #

#REF!

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT) 05 March 2025 Page 18

Care leavers pathway plan and contact timescales Snapshot 05/03/2025

0 0 0 0 0

100

26

37

7

2 0

28

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

0-3months 3-6 months 6-9 months 9-12 months 1+ yrs Not recorded

%
 R

e
l/

F
o

rm
e
r 

R
e
l. 

1
7
/1

8
 y

/o
 

Pathway Plan last updated - 17/18 year olds (relevant/former relevant)

17 18

43 43

10

0 0

5

33

60

2
0 0

5

27

36

23

0
3

11

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

0-3months 3-6 months 6-9 months 9-12 months 1+ yrs Not recorded

%
 F

o
rm

e
r 

R
e
l. 

1
9
/2

0
/2

1
 y

/o
 

Pathway Plan last updated 19/20/21 year olds (former relevant)

19 20 21

0 0 0 0

33

67

80

9

0
2

6
4

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

0-2 months 2-4 months 4-6 months 6-12 months 1+ years Not recorded

%
 R

e
l/

F
o

rm
e
r 

R
e
l. 

1
7
/1

8
 y

/o
 

Time since last contact - 17/18 year olds (relevant/former relevant)

17 18

86

11

0
3

0 0

86

7

2 4 2 0

56

19

13
9

3
0

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

0-2 months 2-4 months 4-6 months 6-12 months 1+ years Not recorded

%
 F

o
rm

e
r 

R
e
l. 

1
9
/2

0
/2

1
 y

/o
 

Time since last contact - 19/20/21 year olds (former relevant)

19 20 21

P
age 26



 This document was classified as: OFFICIAL #

ChAT
Numbers in cohort
LA in touch with YP

ChAT
Numbers in cohort
LA in touch with YP

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT) 05 March 2025 Page 19

Care leavers PA allocation and in touch Snapshot 05/03/2025

LA in touch with 17-18 year olds (relevant/former relevant)

Aged 17 Aged 18 Total
3 54 57

#REF!

LA in touch with 19-21 year olds (former relevant)

Aged 19 Aged 20 Aged 21 Total
63 57 63 183

95%

97% 98% 90% 95%

70%

0% 74% 70%

In touch

Not in touch

Not recorded

0

100
90 84 90

70

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 Latest

snapshot

%
 o

f 
Y

P
 1

7
-1

8

SNs Eng LA

In touch

Not in touch

Not recorded

0

98
90 85 86

95

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 Latest

snapshot

%
 o

f 
Y

P
 1

9
-2

1

SNs Eng LA

0

83
79

100

17
21

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

17 18 Overall

%
 R

e
l/

F
o

rm
e
r 

R
e
l. 

1
7
/1

8
 y

/o
 

17/18 year olds by personal advisor allocation (relevant/former relevant)

PA Allocated No PA allocated

97 95

64

85

3 5

36

15

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

19 20 21 Overall

%
 F

o
rm

e
r 

R
e
l. 

1
9
/2

0
/2

1
 y

/o
 

19/20/21 year olds by personal advisor allocation (former relevant)

PA Allocated No PA allocated

P
age 27



 This document was classified as: OFFICIAL #

ChAT ChAT
Numbers in cohort Numbers in cohort
In suitable accommodation In suitable accommodation

Care leavers accommodation suitability and type

Aged 19

67%
61

0%

Accommodation types of 17-18 year olds

63%

63%

Page 20

179

Accommodation suitability of 19-21 year olds (former relevant)Accommodation suitability of 17-18 year olds (relevant/former relevant)

Aged 20
63

#REF!

05/03/2025

88%

Aged 17

91%
55

88%

Aged 21 TotalAged 18

83%
54 57

Snapshot

90%

Total

Accommodation types of 19-21 year olds

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT) 05 March 2025

3

Suitable accom

Not suitable

No information

0

98 91 81
97

63

0

50

100

150

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 Latest

snapshot

%
 o

f 
Y

P
 1

7
-1

8
SNs Eng LA

18

0

19

4

0

0

2

0

2

0

11

2

0

5

9

0

30

0 10 20 30 40

With parents or relatives

Community home

Semi-independent transitional

Supported lodgings

Gone abroad

Deported

Ordinary lodgings

Residence not known

No fixed abode / homeless

Foyers

Independent living

Emergency accommodation

Bed and breakfast

In custody

With Former Foster Carer

Other accommodation

LA does not have information

% 17-18 year olds

Latest snapshot LA 23-24 SNs 23-24 Eng 23-24

Suitable accom

Not suitable

No information

92 92

87
88 88 88

80

85

90

95

'19-20 '20-21 '21-22 '22-23 '23-24 Latest

%
 o

f 
Y

P
 1

9
-2

1

SNs Eng LA

14

4

10

6

0

0

3

2

1

0

34

2

0

6

12

0

5

0 10 20 30 40 50

With parents or relatives

Community home

Semi-independent transitional

Supported lodgings

Gone abroad

Deported

Ordinary lodgings

Residence not known

No fixed abode / homeless

Foyers

Independent living

Emergency accommodation

Bed and breakfast

In custody

 With Former Foster Carer

Other accommodation

LA does not have information

% 19-21 year olds

Latest snapshot LA 23-24 SNs 23-24 Eng 23-24P
age 28



 This document was classified as: OFFICIAL #

ChAT ChAT
Numbers in cohort Numbers in cohort
In EET In EET

Aged 19 Aged 20 Aged 21 Total

0% 44%

Aged 17

57% 42%

48%

63

Activity types of 19-21 year olds (former relevant)

3
Aged 18

Care leavers activity (Education, Employment, or Training)

183

37%

37%

Snapshot

54 57
Total

Page 21

57
39%

63

#REF!

Activity types of 17-18 year olds (relevant/former relevant)

48%

05/03/2025

Children's services Analysis Tool (ChAT) 05 March 2025

Education, Employment, or Training (EET) of 17-18 year olds (relevant/former relevant) Education, Employment, or Training (EET) of 19-21 year olds (former relevant)

Longest

YP in EET NEET

No info

46

58 61

52
59

37

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2023-24 Latest

snapshot

%
 o

f 
Y

P
 1

7
-1

8
SNs Eng LA

2

32

4

2

28

4

37

33

30

0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70

Higher education (EET)

Education other than higher (EET)

Training / employment (EET)

Illness / disability (NEET)

Other (NEET)

Pregnancy / parenting (NEET)

EET total

NEET total

LA does not have information

% 17-18 year olds

Latest snapshot LA 23-24 SNs 23-24 Eng 23-24

7

14

27

17

23

4

48

45

7

0 10 20 30 40 50 60

Higher education (EET)

Education other than higher (EET)

Training / employment (EET)

Illness / disability (NEET)

Other (NEET)

Pregnancy / parenting (NEET)

EET total

NEET total

LA does not have information

% 19-21 year olds

Latest snapshot LA 23-24 SNs 23-24 Eng 23-24

YP in EET NEET

No info

50

37 38

47
44

48

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

'19-20 '20-21 '21-22 '22-23 '23-24 Latest

%
 o

f 
Y

P
 1

9
-2

1

SNs Eng LA

P
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes - You Matter to Us - Corporate Parenting Board - 30 January 2025
	5 Care Experienced Youth Update
	6 Children in Care Update
	7 You Matter to Us - Performance

